## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ERIC GRIFFIN, : Petitioner, : vs. : STATE OF FLORIDA, : Respondent. : :

Case SC07-168

## DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

## BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON JURISDICTION

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRAD PERMAR Assistant Public Defender FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 0473014

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33831 (863) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

# TOPICAL

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION BASED ON CERTIFIED CONFLICT BETWEEN THE INSTANT CASE AND RIDGEWAY V. STATE, AND BECAUSE THE DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION DRASTICALLY LIMITS THE INTENDED SCOPE OF MOTIONS TO CORRECT SENTENCING ERROR UNDER FLORIDA RULE OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE 3.800(b)
CONCLUSION
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 11
APPENDIX

#### TABLE OF CITATIONS

PAGE NO.

State Cases Desue v. State, 908 So. 2d 1116 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) Gray v. State, 910 So. 2d 867 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) 9 9 Griffin v. State, --- So.2d ----4 Peterson v. State, 911 So. 2d 184 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) 9 Ridgeway v. State, 892 So.2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) 3, 4 State Statutes Florida Statutes 794.011, 810.02 1 Florida Rules Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.800(a) and (b) 5

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On September 24, 2003, the Hillsborough County State Attorney charged the Petitioner, Eric Griffin, with sexual battery using a deadly weapon and burglary with battery, in violation of Florida Statutes 794.011 and 810.02. (R18-22)

Briefly, the state charged that on November 2, 2002, the Petitioner met the victim at issue about 2:30 in the morning on a roadside near Ybor City where she was looking for a house key she'd accidentally thrown out of her car. (T68-69) The state said the evidence showed Petitioner offered to buy her breakfast but needed to stop at his apartment to get money. (T69-70) The state said the evidence showed after the victim went into the apartment, Petitioner attacked and raped her. (T70-72) The defense responded that the victim had consensual sex with the Petitioner. (T79-80)

The Honorable Wayne Timmerman, Circuit Judge, conducted jury trial beginning November 17, 2004.  $(T1)^1$  The jury acquitted Mr. Griffin of Count Two, and returned a lesserincluded verdict of sexual battery with the threat of force. (R65) On November 18, 2004, Judge Timmerman sentenced Mr. Griffin to 30 years prison as a prison release reoffender.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> In the brief that follows, references to the record proper will be made through the use of the letter "R," followed by the appropriate page number. ("R1," etc.) References to the transcript of trial will be made through the use of the letter "T," followed by the appropriate page number. ("T1," etc.)

(R69-77) Mr. Griffin filed a timely notice of appeal on November 19, 2004. (R84) Thereafter, on June 29, 2005, the Petitioner's counsel filed an initial motion to correct sentencing error, and November 17, 2005, filed a second or amended motion to correct. (R93-153,213-40)

After the Second District issued its opinion on January 5, 2007, the Petitioner filed a notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction on January 29, 2007, and that petition follows.

## SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

This Honorable Court should accept jurisdiction first based on certified conflict between the instant opinion and <u>Ridgeway v. State, 892 So.2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005)</u>. But the Court should also accept jurisdiction because the opinion of the Second District arguably and too-severely limits motions to correct sentencing error (under Rule 3.800(b)) to only two situations, first where the sentence is illegal (and thus arguably correctable under Rule 3.800(a)), and second only in those cases where certain sentencing documents were created and served after the sentencing hearing, "resulting in written sentences with terms and conditions not imposed in open court."

#### ARGUMENT

#### ISSUE

THIS COURT SHOULD ACCEPT JURISDICTION BASED ON CERTIFIED CONFLICT BETWEEN THE INSTANT CASE AND <u>RIDGEWAY V. STATE</u>, AND BECAUSE THE DISTRICT COURT'S OPINION DRASTICALLY LIMITS THE INTENDED SCOPE OF MOTIONS TO CORRECT SENTENCING ERROR UNDER FLA. RULE APP. PRO. 3.800(b).

In this case, <u>Griffin v. State, --- So.2d ----</u>, 32 Fla. L. Weekly D179 (Fla. 2 DCA January 5, 2007), the Second District certified conflict with <u>Ridgeway v. State, 892 So.2d</u> <u>538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005)</u>, regarding the "application of ex post facto principles to costs imposed at sentencing." See slip opinion, pages 7-9. The Second District noted <u>Ridgeway</u>'s holding the imposition of certain costs after the effective date of the statute implementing those costs "violates ex post facto prohibitions only when the length of an inmate's sentence can be increased by failure to pay the costs," and/or because the statute(s) at issue do not "subject a violator to criminal penalties such as additional prison time or loss of gain-time for failure to pay the cost." See, slip opinion, pages 7-8.

The Second District disagreed with the analysis in <u>Ridgeway</u>, and thus ordered struck in this case a \$65 cost pursuant to section 939.185 and costs of \$2 and \$150 pursuant

to section 938.085, then as noted certified conflict with Ridgeway.

In light of the foregoing, this Court should exercise its jurisdiction in this casein order to resolve this issue substantially affecting the uniform administration of justice in this case. That is, while the costs in any given case may seem relatively inconsequential, they must be multiplied by the number of such cases affected at least since the First District issued Ridgeway in 2005. Moreover, the assessment of such fees - after the effective date of the statute or statutes implementing those costs - clearly affects the public's perception of this state's court system, as those fees strongly appear to violate ex post facto. Thus if such fees are to be assessed "ex post facto" at all, they should be assessed uniformly throughout this state, rather than subject to one standard of review in one appellate district and another standard in a separate district.

Aside from the foregoing, there exists a separate critical issue this Honorable Court should correct, to wit: the Second District's opinion which appears to severely restrict the scope of motions to correct sentencing error.

To begin with, the Second District specifically wrote to "address various sentencing issues that were raised in the trial court by way of motions to correct sentencing errors

pursuant to <u>Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.800(b)(2)</u>." See, slip opinion, pages 1-2. The Second District noted the Petitioner's counsel filed two motions to correct sentencing error, the second arguing in part that "certain documents admitted at sentencing to support the prison releasee reoffender sentence were not properly authenticated and were therefore inadmissible." See, slip opinion, page 2.

In due course, the Second District concluded that the issue regarding proof of Petitioner's status as a prison releasee reoffender was both waived because it was not raised by trial counsel, and was not the type of sentencing error that could be addressed in a motion under Rule 3.800(b):

[W]e conclude that any issue regarding the admissibility of evidence presented at the hearing to sentencing support prison releasee reoffender sentencing was waived when Mr. Griffin's [trial] counsel failed to object to the evidence. It could not be resurrected by a motion to correct sentencing error.

See slip opinion, pages 3-4. The Second District ultimately held the admission into evidence of a "'crime and time' letter prepared by the Department of Corrections without proper authentication," so as to prove a defendant's status as a prison releasee reoffender (PRR), was not a "proper subject for a motion under rule 3.800(b)," and thereafter appeared to drastically limit the scope of such motions, thus appearing to thwart the intent of both the Legislature and this Honorable

б

## Court:

"Sentencing error" for purposes of this motion was never intended to cover any and all issues that arise at sentencing hearings and could have been subject to objection at the hearing. The rule was intended circumvent rules requiring not to contemporaneous objections or enforcing principles of waiver. It was not intended to give a defendant a "second bite at the apple" to contest evidentiary rulings made at sentencing to which the defendant could have objected but chose not to do so. It was not intended as а broad substitute for а postconviction claim of ineffective assistance of counsel for counsel's representation at a sentencing hearing. Instead, it was intended to address errors to which the defendant had no meaningful opportunity to object and matters that rendered the sentence otherwise subject to review under rule 3.800(a).

See, slip opinion, page 4. In doing so, the Second District acknowledged clear legislative intent "that all claims of error are [to be] raised and resolved the first at instead of permitting such opportunity," but an error affecting a "PRR" sentence to be resolved at that first opportunity - that is, during the process of appeal - the Second District would require such an arguable sentencing error to be corrected, if at all, following direct appeal and only through a Rule 3.850 motion for post-conviction relief alleging ineffective assistance of trial counsel. See, slip opinion, pages 4-6.

The Second District noted that sentencing documents are often "created and served after the sentencing hearing," resulting in written sentences with terms and conditions not

imposed in open court, and as to which the defendant never got a chance to object. See slip opinion, page 5:

Rule 3.800(b) was created to address these issues. It also permits counsel to correct the kinds of issues that can be raised at any time because they render the sentence illegal. This distinction may admittedly be a little imprecise at times, but what is clear is that the motion was never intended to permit counsel to reopen a sentencing hearing merely to do a better job than was done at that hearing.

The Petitioner agrees that Rule 3.800(b) was probably not implemented to enable a defendant or his attorney "merely to do a better job" a second time than was done at the original However, the opinion of the Second sentencing hearing. District - as it now stands, appears to permit such Rule 3.800(b) motions only to correct two types of error, an illegal sentence (and thus already "correctable" under Rule 3.800(a)), and a sentence where the implementing documents were created and served after the sentencing hearing, "resulting in written sentences with terms and conditions not imposed in open court."

With all due respect, the Petitioner suggests that Rule 3.800(b) was not designed and implemented - by the Legislature and/or by this Honorable Court - to be limited to only those two situations, one of which is already covered by Rule 3.800(a).

Further, the decision as it now stands would require a defendant - whose attorney failed to object to a sentencing

error apparent on the record - to wait until he can serve a motion for post-conviction relief to correct such a patent error:

Mr. Griffin's trial counsel appeared at sentencing could have objected to the and lack of authentication of the "crime and time" letter. His failure to do so waived this issue. Indeed, our record now reflects that counsel's failure to object may well have arisen from the fact that the document's contents were accurate and thus the document could have been properly authenticated, albeit by further effort and inconvenience to the State. When evidentiary rulings are unchallenged at sentencing, the defendant generally waives any objection. Of course, if the failure to object somehow prejudices the defendant - i.e., an unauthenticated document turns out to be inaccurate and the authentic document would not permit the sentence imposed - then the defendant may have grounds for a motion for postconviction relief alleging ineffective assistance of counsel. We therefore affirm the imposition of the prison releasee reoffender sentence in this case.

See slip opinion, pages 5-6. Moreover, in this case there appeared to be a very good reason why the Petitioner's trial attorney didn't object, as the Second District required.

That is, while the Petitioner was sentenced on November 18, 2004, the cases cited in his second motion to correct sentencing error were not issued until the following year. That is, the First District issued <u>Gray v. State, 910 So. 2d</u> <u>867 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005)</u>, <u>Desue v. State, 908 So. 2d 1116 (Fla.</u> <u>1st DCA 2005)</u>, and <u>Peterson v. State, 911 So. 2d 184 (Fla. 1st</u> <u>DCA 2005)</u>, in July and/or September 2005, and in those cases the First District arguably clarified the "necessary authentication of documents when the state seeks sentencing under the PRR act," in a manner arguably not available to the Petitioner's trial attorney.

## CONCLUSION

Wherefore, and in light of the foregoing, the Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court accept jurisdiction of his case for further review, based both on certified conflict and on the Second District's appearing to limit the scope of motions under Rule 3.800(b), contrary to the intent of this Honorable Court, the Florida Legislature, or both.