IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ERIC GABRIEL GRIFFIN PETITIONER,

V

CASE NO SC07-168

STATE OF FLORIDA, RESPONDENT.

_____/

RESPONDENT'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF ON REVIEW FROM THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

> BILL MCCOLLUM ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. KRAUSS Chief Assistant Attorney General Bureau Chief, Tampa Criminal Appeals Florida Bar No. 238538

TIMOTHY A. FREELAND Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0539181 Concourse Center Bldg. Four 3507 Frontage Road, Suite 200 Tampa, Florida 33607 Phone: (813) 287-7900 Fax: (813) 281-5500

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT4
ARGUMENT
THIS COURT SHOULD NOT ACCEPT JURISDICTION TO CONSIDER THE SECOND DISTRICT'S DECISION
CONCLUSION10
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE11
CERTIFICATE OF FONT COMPLIANCE11

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CASES

<u>Allstate Insurance Co. v. Manasse</u> ,
707 So. 2d 1110 (Fla. 1998)9
Friedrich v. State,
767 So. 2d 451 (Fla. 2000)9
Griffin v. State,
946 So. 2d 610 (Fla. 2d DCA 2007)12
Griffin v. State,
947 So. 2d 610 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2007)6
Nielsen v. City of Sarasota,
117 So. 2d 731 (Fla. 1960)
Paulucci v. General Dynamics Corp.,
842 So. 2d 797 (Fla., 2003)9
Ridgeway v. State,
892 So. 2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005)
Williams v. State,
889 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 2004)9
RULES OF PROCEDURE
Fla. R. App. P. 9.210(a)(2)11
Fla. R. App. Proc. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(vi)6

Fla.	R.	Crim.	Proc.	3.800(b)	 	 	 	 	 •	 •	•	 	 8

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted after a jury trial of sexual battery while using a deadly weapon, and burglary with battery. On appeal, the Second District Court of Appeal affirmed Petitioner's convictions but reversed as to certain costs imposed, based upon a finding that said costs were improper because they were enacted after the date when Petitioner committed the crime and therefore violated the Ex Post Facto clause of the U.S. Constitution. In so ruling, the Second District certified conflict with the First District Court of Appeal decision in <u>Ridgeway v.</u> State, 892 So. 2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

While Petitioner correctly argues that the lower court has certified express and direct conflict with the decision of another district court of appeal on the same point of law, the present issue is unlikely to be of wide application and is largely moot. Further, Petitioner is improperly seeking review in a case where he prevailed, in order that he might raise issues which were not identified by the lower court as the basis for conflict.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD NOT ACCEPT JURISDICTION TO CONSIDER THE SECOND DISTRICT'S DECISION

I. Standard of Review:

This Court has discretionary jurisdiction to review cases arising from the district courts of appeal where a decision from one district court of appeal is certified to be in direct conflict with a decision of another district court of appeal pursuant to Fla. R. App. Proc. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(vi). In the instant case, the Second District Court of Appeal certified that its decision in <u>Griffin v. State</u>, 947 So. 2d 610 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2007) conflicts with <u>Ridgeway v. State</u>, 892 So. 2d 538 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) on the issue of whether certain court costs imposed against Petitioner violate the prohibition against ex post facto laws where the statute authorizing those costs was enacted after the date of the crime in question.

II. Argument:

Petitioner seeks to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction. This Court's jurisdiction is found in the Florida Constitution, Article V, ' 3(b)(3), which requires a petitioner seeking to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court demonstrate that the lower court's opinion

"expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal or of the supreme court on the same question of law." This Court has identified two basic forms of decisional conflict which properly justify the exercise of jurisdiction under section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. Either (1) where an announced rule of law conflicts with other appellate expressions of law, or (2) where a rule of law is applied to produce a different result in a case which involves "substantially the same controlling facts as a prior case. . . ." <u>Nielsen</u> <u>v. City of Sarasota</u>, 117 So. 2d 731, 734 (Fla. 1960).

It is the Respondent's position that while this Court has authority to consider the question as certified by the lower court, it nevertheless should decline to do so because the issue will be moot for the vast majority of defendants affected by the issue addressed by the Second District. Further, Respondent would suggest that Petitioner's request that this Court accept jurisdiction on the basis of conflict is disingenuous, as the grounds which he advances as the basis for this Court's acceptance of jurisdiction is conflict which arose out of a case in which Petitioner was the victor; he therefore was not prejudiced by the lower court's ruling, in that he

succeeded in obtaining an Order which strikes certain court costs erroneously imposed by the trial court.

Instead, Petitioner seeks to obtain review of the instant case in hopes that this Court will consider collateral matters which are not the basis for the lower court's determination with regard to conflict, and it is Respondent's position that it is improper for Petitioner to seek access to this Honorable Court for the reasons he presently has posited.

Specifically, Petitioner asks this Court to consider that portion of the lower court's ruling which, he contends, incorrectly limits the scope of Fla. R. Crim. Proc. 3.800(b). Although it approved Petitioner's argument with regard to costs imposed, the Second District rejected Petitioner's argument that the trial court improperly considered documents used by the State to establish the propriety of Petitioner's sentence as a prison releasee reoffender because trial counsel failed to make a timely objection and thereby waived appellate review. Petitioner contends that the effect of this ruling will be to prevent subsequent review of similar issues except in a complaint alleging ineffective assistance of counsel filed pursuant to Rule 3.850. The State agrees that the lower court's ruling will have this effect, but rejects Petitioner's

assertion that he is prejudiced thereby. In any event, because this issue was not the basis for the lower court's declaration of conflict with the First District, there is no cause for this Court to consider this argument. In Williams v. State, 889 So. 2d 804 (Fla. 2004), this Court addressed a certified question from the Second District Court of Appeal regarding whether Anders procedures are applicable to Ryce commitment proceedings. This Court declined to address another issue raised by Petitioner since it was outside the scope of the certified question and was not the basis of its discretionary review. See also Friedrich v. State, 767 So. 2d 451 (Fla. 2000); Paulucci v. Gen. Dynamics Corp., 842 So. 2d 797, 799 (Fla., 2003); Allstate Ins. Co. v. Manasse, 707 So. 2d 1110, 1112 (Fla. 1998)(Court declined to address issue of attorney's fees which was outside the scope of certified question).

Accordingly, this Court should decline to exercise its jurisdiction in this case.

CONCLUSION

Respondent respectfully requests that this Honorable Court decline to exercise its jurisdiction in this case.